ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 31, 2013
8:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative Lynn Gattis
Representati ve Shel |l ey Hughes
Represent ati ve Doug | saacson
Representative Charisse MIllett
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 75

“"An Act repealing certain audit requirenents for entities
receiving contributions from permanent fund dividends; requiring
each campus of the University of Alaska to apply to be included
on the contribution list for contributions from permanent fund
di vidends; and requiring a university to pay an application fee
for each canpus separately listed on the contribution list for
contributions from permanent fund dividends."

- MOVED HB 75 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 10

"An Act authorizing state agencies to pay private |legal fees and
costs incurred by persons exonerated of alleged violations of
t he Al aska Executive Branch Ethics Act; allowing certain public
officers and fornmer public officers to accept state paynents to
of fset private |egal fees and costs related to defendi ng agai nst
conplaints under the Alaska Executive Branch Ethics Act; and
creating certain exceptions to limtations under the Al aska
Executive Branch Ethics Act on the use of state resources to
provide or pay for transportation of spouses and children of the
governor and the |ieutenant governor."

- HEARD & HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- January 31, 2013



BILL: HB 75
SHORT TITLE: CONTRI BUTI ON FROM PFD: AUDI TS; UNI VERSI TY
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) SEATON

01/ 18/ 13 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 13 (H) STA, FIN
01/ 31/ 13 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 10
SHORT TI TLE: EXEC ETHI CS: LEGAL FEES/ FAM LY TRAVEL
SPONSCR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) GRUENBERG

01/ 16/ 13 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 13

01/ 16/ 13 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 13 (H) STA, JUD

01/ 31/ 13 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 75 as sponsor.

HEATHER BEGGS, St af f

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information regarding HB 75 on
behal f of Representative Seaton, sponsor.

M KE WALSH, MPA, Ph.D., Vice President

Qper ati ons

For aker Group

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
75.

KATHLEEN LI GHT, Executive Director
Ket chi kan Arts and Humanities Council (KAHC)
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 75.

ANGELA RODELL, Deputy Conmi ssioner

Departnent of Revenue (DOR)
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -2- January 31, 2013



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
75.

DANA PAPERMAN, Executive Director

Seward Seni or Center

Sewar d, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 75.

TED MADSEN, St aff

Representati ve Max G uenberg

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 10 on behalf of Representative
Gruenberg, sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE MAX GRUENBERG

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, responded to questions during
t he hearing on HB 10.

JUDY BOCKMON, Assistant Attorney Ceneral;

State Ethics Attorney

Opi ni ons, Appeals, & Ethics Section

Cvil Division (Anchorage)

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
10.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8: 05: 00 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Commttee
nmeeting to order at 8:05 a.m Representatives Hughes, |saacson,
Keller, Gattis, Kreiss-Tonkins, and Lynn were present at the
call to order. Representatives MIllett arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HB 75- CONTRI BUTI ON FROM PFD: AUDI TS; UNI VERSI TY

8:05:32 AM
CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE

BILL NO 75, "An Act repealing certain audit requirenents for
entities receiving contributions from permanent fund dividends;

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- January 31, 2013



requiring each canpus of the University of Alaska to apply to be

included on the «contribution Ilist for contributions from
permmanent fund dividends; and requiring a university to pay an
application fee for each canpus separately Ilisted on the
contribution list for contributions from permanent fund
di vi dends. "
8:05: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PAUL SEATON, Al aska State Legislature, presented
HB 75 as sponsor. He reviewed that the "Pick.dick.Gve"
program was established by the [25th Alaska State] Legislature
as a sinple way for Alaskans to designate a portion of their
permanent fund dividend (PFD) as a donation to charities.
Currently, he stated, nonprofit organizations with a total
budget of |ess than $250,000 are exenpt from the financial audit
required of nonprofit organizations with a total budget of
$250, 000 or greater wishing to participate in Pick.dick.Gve.
He clarified that the audit is a financial one done by a
certified public accountant (CPA); it is not an Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) audit. He reviewed that the IRS 990 form
[included in the conmmttee packet], is 12 pages in length, was
revised in 2008, and not only ensures nonprofit organizations'
i ncome and expense nunbers match, but also considers conflicts
of interest and governance.

8:07:55 AM
REPRESENTATI VE = SEATON explained that the current audi t

requirenent is problematic for a nonprofit organization that,
for exanple, makes $260,000 a year, because the cost of the

audit is $7,000-%12, 000. He opined that the purpose of a
nonprofit organization is to acconplish its mssion, not to
enpl oy CPAs. Representative Seaton said there is no question

that CPA audits are best practices; however, he said the
guestion is whether the state should require a CPA audit from a
small entity sinply to allow people to donate nobney to that

entity. He questioned why it is necessary to disadvantage a
smal | er nonprofit organization with an onerous requirenent that
is not required of Ilarger nonprofit organizations until they

reach $500, 000 in federal funds.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON rel ayed that many people who did not see
their charity on the Pick.Cick.Gve list mstakenly interpreted
that to nmean that the charity had lost its nonprofit status,
which he said is "another reason to get rid of this." He said
The Rasnmuson Foundation and other entities are trying to nmake it

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- January 31, 2013



very easy for people to donate to the organizations they support
and are happy to have nore nonprofit organizations participate
in the Pick.Cick.Gve program

8:11: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the proposed |egislation would also
correct an oversight in the original |egislation. He expl ai ned
that all the nonprofits pay a $250 admi nistrative fee, but the
Uni versity of Al aska canpuses were left out of that requirenent.
He offered his understanding that the University of Al aska does
not mnd being asked to pay that fee.

8:12: 21 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to the chair, relayed that

the CPA audit 1|ooks at finances and account balancing, not
whet her the expense should have been nade. He said the idea for

the bill cane from a conplaint from the Seward Senior Center in
Seward, Al aska, which was generating $3, 000-%4,000 in donations,
while facing an audit that was going to cost $12,000. He
remarked that the CPA audit is not even reviewed. In response

to a followup question, he clarified that a CPA audit would not
determine the legitimacy of a nonprofit organization; that is
sonmet hing the IRS woul d do.

8:15:26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTI S said she understands best practices, but
guestioned what the other purpose of the [CPA] audit could be.
She asked if the audit is open to the public.

8:16: 23 AM

HEATHER BEGGS, Staff, Representative Paul Seaton, Alaska State
Legi slature, on behalf of Representative Seaton, sponsor of HB
75, stated, "Both the 990 and CPA audits do report sone program
activities of nonprofits.” She said the IRS 990 form is nore
det ai | ed. She said both docunents are open to the public;
al t hough the 990 formis nore accessible. She relayed that with
the revisions nade in 2008, "nonprofits are penalized $20 a day
every day after five days that they would refuse giving a 990 to
a donor." The CPA audit is an internally nmanaged file that
shoul d be given but is not required to be given [to the public],
she sai d.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -5- January 31, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE GATTI S asked Ms. Beggs to confirm that [the CPA]
audit will not necessarily clarify for donors how their noney is
spent.

MS. BEGGS answered that is correct.
8:17: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if any nonprofit 501(c)(3) wlling
to fill out the 990 form is eligible to be listed in the
Pick.dick. G ve program

8:18: 23 AM

M5. BEGGS answered that there are other requirenents, upon which
she suggested the Foraker Goup could expound, but said every
organi zation nust be a 501(c)(3), which is why the bill sponsor
feels the 990 form is the best accountability (indisc. -
over | appi ng voices). In response to followup questions, she
indicated that the status of the University of Alaska is
specified in statute, and she offered her understanding that the
university is "the only other exception,” but again deferred to
t he Foraker Group for further details.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER stated support of the sponsor's "getting
this through.”

8:19: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER stated his belief that the audit becane an
eligibility requirenment because the bar was so high. He said he
thinks it is great to take that bar away, as long as everybody
gets "a fair shake," and he questioned whether "we" are prepared
to nmake sure everyone can apply on equal terns. He nentioned
public schools. He said he was thinking about religious
nonprofit organizations and "how that eligibility is required.”
He indicated that the IRS has nmade changes related to 501(c)(3)
organi zations, but stated that "they weren't that difficult."

8:20: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the general pur pose of [the
Pick.Cick.Gve program is to enable people to give donations
with ease. He said generally people give noney to organi zations
they know. He stated that really snall organizations are
al ready exenpt; [the proposed] legislation is designed for those
organi zations with budgets over $250, 000.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- January 31, 2013



8:23:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he understands the purpose of the
proposed legislation, but clarified that he wants to know if
[the division] is prepared for the increased nunber of nonprofit
organi zations that mght participate in Pick.Cick.Gve if HB 75
passes. Further, he expressed concern that there would be an
equal basis of qualification for all charities.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that HB 75 would get rid of

i nequality. Regardi ng the concern about being prepared for the
change, he noted that representatives from the Rasnuson
Foundation and the division were available to testify. He

related that "they" have not expressed concern about the
additional work that may result from allowing nore nonprofit
organi zations into the Pick.Cick.G ve program

8:26: 29 AM

M5. BEGGS, in response to Representative |saacson, stated that
the 990 forns were all changed in 2008 and are "tiered" to
accommodate organizations wth snmaller budgets, but stil
include "all the sanme accountable categories.”

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked if the intent of HB 75 is to allow
nonprofit organizations to use whichever form they file to the
IRS as the formthey submt to the Pick.dick. G ve program

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON answered that is correct.
8:28:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES noted that the 990 form |lists the purpose
of the nonprofit organization. She further noted that 990 forns
can be accessed easily on |ine. She offered her understanding
that [Al aska] has one of the highest nonprofit organizations to
popul ation ratios, which she said could nmean a long |Iist
burdeni ng the division; however, she recollected hearing about a
requi renent wherein "they have to receive a certain anmount of
their revenue inconme via donations” - an anount that she said
seemed high, such as $100,000 - and she suggested that that
detail could limt the rise in program participants.

8:30: 26 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- January 31, 2013



VB. BEGGS suggested that Representative Hughes mght be
referring to the "one-third public support test,” which is part
of the 990 formrequirenent for nonprofit organi zati ons, but not
part of the Pick.dick.Gve application

8:30: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS pointed to a research brief from
Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services, dated 1/24/13, in which
it is noted that Diane Kaplan, president of the Rasnuson
Foundation, testified in 2007 that there were budget and
staffing requirenents related to qualifications of a nonprofit
organi zation to take part in the Pick.Cick.Gve program He
asked for details regarding those requirenents.

8:31: 22 AM

IVB. BEGGS deferred to other testifiers to answer further
guesti ons.

8:32: 02 AM

MKE WALSH, MPA, Ph.D., Vice President, Operations, Foraker
Group, in response to the chair, explained that the Foraker
Goup is a 501(c)(3) nonprofit managenent core organization
whose job is to strengthen nonprofit organizations through
education, training, organizational developnent, and shared
financial human services. In response to [Representative
Hughes'] previous nmention of a $100,000 price point, confirmed
that that pertains to a requirenent of the Pick.dick.Gve
program wherein an organization nust receive 5 percent or at

| east $100,000 of its revenue from donated sources. |n response
to Representative |saacson, he clarified, "... whichever is the
| oner. "

8:34:38 AM

DR. WALSH, in response to a question from Representative Keller,
stated that there is little adm nistrative burden anticipated as
a result of HB 75, Bbecause the process for taking in
applications is on line and sinple.

8:36:19 AM
KATHLEEN LI GHT, Executi ve Di rector, Ket chi kan Arts and

Humanities Council (KAHC), testified in support of HB 75. She
stated that KAHC cannot participate in the Pick.dick.Gve

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- January 31, 2013



program because it is too great a financial burden to do so.
She said the program is an extraordinary means to increase

funding for many nonprofit organizations, as well as a
phi | ant hr opi ¢ opportunity for Al askan citizens, and
participation in the program gives a "stanp of approval” to an
organi zation; however, ironically the program disenfranchises

t hose organi zations that cannot participate because of its cost.
Ms. Light said KAHC receives nunerous calls from people asking

why the council is not in the Pick.dick.Gve program and has
di scovered | ater that those people are not donating noney to the
counci |, because they have already given through the

Pick.dick.Gve program Under HB 75, she said, KAHC woul d be
financially able to participate in the Pick.dick.Gve program

M5. LICGHT relayed that KAHC was established in 1953, has been a
nonprofit organization since 1970, and has a budget of
approxi mately $320, 000. She said the council receives grants
fromthe Cty of Ketchikan, the Ketchi kan Borough, the State of
Al aska, the Alaska State Council on the Arts, the National
Endowrent for the Arts, Westaff (ph), the Rasnmuson Foundati on,
and the Murdock Trust. She said it is not unusual for nonprofit
organi zations in Alaska to receive grants from so many different
sources, all of which require the 990 form which is "sufficient
for them in reviewing our finances and our standing as a good
nonprofit."

8:39:46 AM

ANGELA RODELL, Deputy Conmi ssioner, Departnent of Revenue (DOR),

said she was present to answer questions on behalf of the
Per manent Fund D vi sion. In response to a question from
Representative Keller, she stated that HB 75 would not place
addi tional burden on the Permanent Fund Division, and said the

depart nent is confortable wth the affect the proposed
| egi sl ati on nay have. In response to a follow up question, she
said the $250 application fee would sufficiently cover the
division's cost in running the Pick.Cdick.Gve program I n

response to the chair, she confirmed that the fiscal note is
zero because there would be no additional cost to the division
as a result of HB 75.

8:41: 28 AM
DANA  PAPERNVAN, Executive Director, Seward  Seni or Center,
testified in support of HB 75. She related that the Seward

Senior Center has served seniors and social services for 35
years. She thanked the bill sponsor for bringing forth the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- January 31, 2013



| egi sl ati on under House Bill 302 in 2012 and again as HB 75 this

year. She said the Seward Senior Cent er becanre a
Pick.Cick.Gve recipient in the first year of the program and
it received $50 from those known personally to the center. V5.

Paperman indicated that she worked in partnership with the
Seward Community  Foundati on, which helps finance direct
marketing in the conmunity, to increase |ocal awareness of the
Pick.dick.Gve program and the recipients in Seward who benefit
fromit, and in the second year of the Pick.Cick.dve program
the Seward Senior Center received $1,100, again conmng from
friends of the center. However, she stated that in 2011, the
center's budget clinbed above the $250,000 mark that requires
the audit, which is a financial burden on the Seward Senior
Center. She said the Pick.Cick.dve program created a val uabl e
avenue for the center to increase its unrestricted funds w thout
creating a burden on the center's funds or operating staff. She
encouraged the commttee to support HB 75 and to help Al aska's
nonprofit organi zations.

8:43: 23 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony.

8:43:33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he thinks HB 75 is a good bill, and
he expressed his hope that the testinony that had been heard
woul d be hel pful in continued process of hearing the bill.

8:43: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS comrented that the proposed |egislation
woul d provide generous Al askans the opportunity to give where
t hey choose, and she said she cannot find a problem with [the
proposed | egi sl ation].

8:44:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS noved to report HB 75 out of comittee
[wth individual recomendations] and the acconpanying zero
fiscal notes. There being no objection, HB 75 was reported out
of the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

8:45: 47 AM

The commttee took an at-ease from8:46 a.m to 8:47 a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- January 31, 2013



HB 10- EXEC ETHI CS: LEGAL FEES/ FAM LY TRAVEL

8:47:46 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the final order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 10, "An Act authorizing state agencies to pay private
|l egal fees and costs incurred by persons exonerated of alleged
violations of the Alaska Executive Branch Ethics Act; allow ng
certain public officers and former public officers to accept
state paynents to offset private |legal fees and costs related to
def endi ng agai nst conplaints under the Al aska Executive Branch
Ethics Act; and creating certain exceptions to limtations under
the Al aska Executive Branch Ethics Act on the use of state
resources to provide or pay for transportation of spouses and
children of the governor and the |ieutenant governor."

8:48: 08 AM

TED MADSEN, Staff, Representative Mx Guenberg, Alaska State
Legislature, presented HB 10 on behalf of Representative
G uenberg, sponsor. He said HB 10 would set into statute "much
of the substance of sone attorney general regulations regarding
the [Al aska] Executive Branch Ethics Act that were pronul gated

back in Decenber of 2009." He explained that Representative
Gruenberg disagreed with the procedures within two regul ations.
The first issue had to do with 9AAC 52.045, which addresses
transportation expenses of famly menbers of the governor and
| i eut enant governor. M. Madsen explained that currently m nor
children are the only ones whose travel costs can be reinbursed,
but the sponsor thinks it is appropriate to include any child of
the governor or |ieutenant governor who is dependent upon the
care of his/her parents because of, for exanple, a physical,
mental, or developnental disability - even if the child is over
t he age of 19.

CHAIR LYNN said theoretically that could include a child of the
governor or |ieutenant governor who is 35 years of age.

MR. MADSEN answered that is correct.
8:50: 51 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if current regulation prohibits

coverage of travel costs for "a mnor child who is dependent and
becomes an adult."”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- January 31, 2013



MR MADSEN cited 9 AAC 52.045 (d)(2), which defines famly
menber as "a spouse or mnor child of the governor or |ieutenant
gover nor".

CHAIR LYNN offered his understanding that HB 10 would increase
coverage froma mnor child to a nentally or physically disabled
adult child of the governor or |ieutenant governor.

MR MADSEN confirned that is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER ventured that just because it is not
covered under regulation does not mean coverage of the trave
cost of a dependent adult child of the governor or |ieutenant
governor woul d be prohibited. He described a scenario in which
a former governor of the state beconmes dependent on his children
for care, and under HB 10 "a senior citizen would still not
qualify." He questioned how big the value of HB 10 woul d be.

8:53: 02 AM

MR. MADSEN rel ayed that the sponsor believes it would be unfair
to unnecessarily keep the governor's or |ieutenant governor's
famly from [traveling together] when there is a child in the
famly who is dependent upon his/her nother or father for care.
He directed attention to the stipulations related to travel cost
rei nbursenent in Section 3, page 3, lines 19-31. For exanpl e,
[as shown on lines 28-29] he stated that the event nust be "a
famly-oriented or youth-oriented event at which the person's
attendance is particularly appropriate".

CHAI R LYNN suggested one exanple mght be participation in the
Speci al d ynpics.

MR MADSEN concurred.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he realizes that. He stated his
belief that because there is no prohibition, the executive
branch could pay for travel as it sees fit; therefore, he
guestioned the necessity of the proposed |egislation.

8:55:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MAX CRUENBERG, Alaska State Legislature, as
sponsor of HB 10, told Representative Keller that he is correct
that currently there is nothing that prevents the executive
branch from "doing what they're doing." However, he said he
thinks it 1is better policy to give the oversight to the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- January 31, 2013



| egi sl ature, which appropriates the noney and is a different
branch of governnent.

8:57:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER opined that the spirit of the current
regulation is neant to be "a little general.™

8:57:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG clarified his intent was to follow the
same paraneters as the regulation. He reiterated that the
guestion is: W decides? He said he thinks it is appropriate
for the executive branch not to nmake policy regarding its own
travel arrangenents.

8:58: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS stated that if she was the governor, she
would want to know what the rules are before making travel
arrangenents. She said she thinks she can see both sides, but
wants to know if currently there are rules to guide a governor
who may want to travel with a child.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG clarified that there are rules in
regulation currently; the only difference is that under HB 10,
adult disabled children woul d be incl uded.

9: 00: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON posited that HB 10 would help to rectify
an issue that needs to be clarified. He said it is not good
policy for the executive branch to ignore the legislature's
statutory authority. He said he likes what the proposed

| egislation would do to clarify this issue, especially in terns
of when a child's care is customary and needed, so that the
child is not split apart from the famly when the famly is
trying to follow the letter of the | aw

9:02:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER clarified that he never neant to suggest
that statute could be ignored by the executive branch. He
stated, "The line between what's statute and what's law is a
difficult one and a subjective one to draw " He said the
guestion is how far [the legislature] can go in specifying
policy in statute.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- January 31, 2013



CHAI R LYNN pointed out that the question is not regarding whom
the governor can bring along when traveling, but who pays for
t hose peopl e.

9:03: 57 AM

MR. MADSEN, in response to coments nmade by Representative
Hughes and the sponsor, offered clarification by citing the
| anguage in AAC 52.045(c), which read as foll ows:

(c) For purposes of AS 39.52.120(a) and (b)(3), the
use or authorization of use of state nobney or other
state resources for transportation of a famly nenber

t hat does not benefit the state is presuned
insignificant if the governor or |ieutenant governor
pays the state the <cost of +the famly nenber's
transportation. Except for transportation by state

aircraft for partisan political purposes under AS
39.52.120(f), the agency that authorized or paid for
the travel shal | determine the cost of t he
transportation based on either

(1) the actual fare paid; or

(2) t he fare for equi val ent conmer ci al
transportation, if the travel was by state aircraft
vessel, or vehicle.

9:07: 35 AM

JUDY BOCKMON, Assistant Attorney General; State Ethics Attorney,
Opi nions, Appeals, & Ethics Section, Cvil Division (Anchorage),
Departnment of Law (DOL), in response to Representative Keller,
offered a brief overview of the code of conduct set up through
the Al aska Executive Branch Ethics Act. She said regul ations
have been adopted over time to provide additional paraneters
with respect to certain portions of the statute. |In response to
the chair, she said the Al aska Executive Branch Ethics Act
applies primarily to soneone in the executive branch of
government while he/she is actively in service

9:10: 59 AM
CHAIR LYNN directed attention to the followng |anguage in the

bill title, on line 3: "allowing certain public officers and
former public officers”.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- January 31, 2013



M5. BOCKMON responded that both the regulations and the proposed
| egislation recognize the possibility that a former state
officer could be the subject of an ethics conplaint for conduct
while in office, and the attorneys' fee provision covers that
i ndividual. She said the regulation and the proposed statute do
not cover a former enployee's violation of one of those
provi sions that apply after he/she | eaves state service.

9:12: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to |anguage in
Section 5, on page 5, lines 5-9, which read:

*Sec. 5. The wuncodified law of the State of
Al aska i s anended by adding a new section to read:

APPLI CABI LI TY. AS 39.52.470, enacted by
sec.4 of this Act, applies only to conplaints under AS
39.521.310 - 39.52.390 that are initiated or filed on
or after the effective date of this Act.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated, "That's talking about the
attorneys' fees. The transportation would apply to applications
that are nade after the effective date; there's no retroactivity
cl ause. ™

9:12: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER offered his understanding that HB 10 is
| ooking at policy decisions regarding regulation that is already
in place. He suggested that the conmttee needs to hear the
rest of the presentation.

9:13: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG clarified that the first part of the
proposed |egislation would adopt the regulations in statute,

"except for the developnentally disabled kid." He offered his
understanding that Representative MIlett would be offering an
amendnent . He said she has sponsored |egislation, which he has
cosponsor ed, in support of the developnentally disabled
community, and he indicated a change in phrase is needed from
"ment al di sability" to "intellectual"” or "devel opnent al
di sability".

9:15: 07 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- January 31, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON noved to adopt Anendnent 1, | abeled 28-
LS0040\ A. 2, Wayne, 1/30/13, which read as foll ows:

Page 3, line 12:
Del ete "or nental "
Insert ", intellectual, or devel opnmental”

There being no objection, Anmendnent 1 was adopt ed.
9:15:47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to Section 4 of HB
10, on page 4, line 7, through page 5, |line 4, which addresses
the ability for any person in the executive branch who is
exonerated to recoup his/her <cost in attorneys' fees in
def endi ng against an ethics conplaint. He stated that under
current regulation, the person can apply and receive paynents
before they are exonerated; under HB 10, the person would have
to wait until he/she is exonerated. He said that is the norma
practice in the state. He opined that if noney is awarded in
advance, the person may not prevail, and then he/she has to be
chased down to get the noney back, which is "unseenmly" and "a
waste of time."

9:18: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked at what point a person could begin
to accunul ate a | egal debt because of a conplaint.

9:19:39 AM

M5. BOCKMON answered that when a conplaint is first received

the departnent does a prelimnary review and analysis to
determ ne whether it states appropriate Ethics Act clainms and
warrants investigation. If the departnent decides to formally
accept the conplaint, then statute requires that the subject of
the conplaint is notified, and the investigation would proceed.
She said nobst investigations are resolved at sone |level of the
i nvestigatory phase; however, statute provides for nore fornal
accusation that mght lead to a hearing. She shared that her
experience has shown that nost subjects do not immediately hire
an attorney when they are served with a conplaint, unless the
ci rcunstances are serious. She said, "If it got to the public
accusation phase wthout otherwise resolving, | would expect
nost fol ks would hire an attorney - but maybe not."

9:21:40 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- January 31, 2013



M5. BOCKMON, in response to a question from Representative
Hughes regardi ng possible costs to the state, explained that the
fiscal note is zero, because wunder [HB 10], neither the
transportation costs nor the attorneys' fees would inpact the
Departnent of Law. She said the Ofice of the Governor has an
adm nistrative account that is addressed in the budget and
appropriations process every year, and the transportation costs
are covered within that funding. She offered her understanding
that the attorneys' fees are covered through the D vision of
Ri sk Managenent, in the Departnent of Adm nistration (DOA), and
the DOA provides the fee paynents through interagency
assessnment; therefore, if there was a particular person subject
to an ethics conplaint who chose to avail himherself of the
attorneys' fees benefit, that would be addressed through the
D vision of R sk Managenent and that particul ar person's agency.

M5. BOCKMON, in response to a request from Representative Hughes
regarding historical information, said there are instances where
state enpl oyees are the subject of various conplaints - not just

ethics conpl aints. She said she is not fully educated on all
the paraneters in which a defense mght be provide in whatever
the law suit is. In addition to Ethics Act proceedings, she

said, there are also other proceedings, which can nake a
conflict challenge or bring a conplaint wunder the hearing
of ficers' procedures, for exanple. The regulations for the
Ethics Act have been in place only since Decenber 2010. She
offered her wunderstanding that to date there has been no one
seeki ng rei nbursenment of attorneys' fees costs. She recollected
two significant matters involving attorneys, and in both
i nstances the individual was not exonerated. She said there may
have been one smaller conplaint that was dismssed where an
attorney was involved; however, she said she is not aware that
there have been any requests for reinbursenent of attorneys’
fees since the regulation went in to effect.

9:26: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked if there is any statutory limt in
what woul d be paid to attorneys' fees.

M5. BOCKMON replied that in August 2009, the Division of R sk
Managenent set a cap of $25,000 per proceeding, regardless of
the nunber of clains nade. She offered her understanding that
the division set that as policy, and said, "I don't see a
citation to ... another authority.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- January 31, 2013



9:27:39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS offered his understanding that HB
10 would change when attorneys' fees are paid out, not how a
person would be paid back his/her attorneys' fee costs only
after being exonerated.

9:28: 14 AM

CHAIR LYNN offered his wunderstanding that under HB 10, the
person who had been exonerated or the Dvision of R sk
Managenment woul d be rei nmbursed.

9: 28: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG answered that is correct. In response
to Representative Hughes' previous questions, he said the
general rule for fiscal notes is that they are viewed only in
ternms of the effect of the bill. The only effect of HB 10, he
said, is "an unknown anount, which wll ... potentially save the
state noney," because it w Il protect against a circunstance
where a person is reinbursed for the attorneys' fees and
subsequently is not exonerated. He opined that a zero fisca
note is very appropriate, because under HB 10, nothing would be
changed but to ensure that a person is not paid erroneously.

REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG directed attention to | anguage
begi nning on page 4, line 31, to page 5, line 4, which he said
does not set an anount for attorney's fees, but outlines that
those fees nust be reasonable, related to the cost of |egal
representation, and necessarily incurred.

CHAIR LYNN said "reasonable” is in the eyes of the judge.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that is correct. He said this
pertains to regulation 9 AAC 52.040(d)(2), which read:

(2) expenses are reasonable if, based on an eval uation
of the conplexity of the alleged claim the attorney’s
fee or hourly rate, the hours expended, t he
rel ati onship between the anobunt of work perfornmed and
the significance of the alleged claim and other

rel evant factors, the expenses were necessarily
incurred to defend against an allegation in a
conplaint brought wunder AS 39.52.310 - 39.52.390;

t hose expenses nay

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- January 31, 2013



(A) include attorney's fees, fees incurred for
prof essional |egal services customarily perforned by
an attorney but delegated to and perfornmed by an
investigator, paralegal, or law clerk, and related
costs; and

(B) be apportioned by alleged violation if a conplaint
alleges nore than one violation, but only if the
public officer provides clear docunentation that the
expenses paid were |limted to the alleged violation
for which the public officer is exonerated; and

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated, "W didn't go into that detai
in statute, because that's covered in the [regulations]."”

9:33: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if it is the normin other states to
have no noney paid until after exoneration from an ethics
conpl ai nt. He posed the possibility that ethics conplaints can
be used as a tool in the tool box of various organizations. He
continued as foll ows:

For exanple, a political organization puts out the

word and says, "Ckay, we've got to have lots of
conplaints filed." That may or may not have an effect
on the AG but we know that the ... nmedia is involved

at a different level than what it normally is in the
courts, and this becones a matter of public opinion

you know, then that ... can affect the results of what
happens with the ... next ethics conplaint.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER expressed his concern that HB 10 can be
used as a political tool. Further, he questioned whether it is
appropriate to renove the option that the executive branch would
have of protecting an enployee that may have becone a politica
target. He offered his understanding that the passage of HB 10

would "prevent that kind of coverage."” He asked if the
executive branch would have the option of "putting the noney out
there ... to help protect its enployees” if the proposed

| egi sl ati on does not pass.
9:36:12 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded that the practice before any

l[itigation canme about was like that in crimnal |aw where there
was no reinbursenent for anything, but worse because there is no

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- January 31, 2013



public attorney appointed to represent the defendant in an
ethics case. He said neither the public defender nor the Ofice
of Public Advocacy have any statutory provision that allows them
to represent "these folks." He opined that when forner Governor
Palin was hit with litigation, that brought people's attention
to "the fact that there should be sone nethod of dealing wth

this." He said the AG decided not to provide a public attorney
for the defendant, but to provide a nethod of reinbursing a
private attorney for the reasonable amunt of the fee. Even

under the Alaska Legislative Branch Ethics Act, there would be
no one to defend legislators, he said, but "fortunately that
hasn't happened.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, regarding the question about fairness,
said it is possible that the person upon whom the ethics
conplaint was filed could incur considerable expense; however,
he said he thinks the chance of not being exonerated is nuch
greater. He echoed Ms. Bocknon's statenent that nost of the
cases are handled in house and do not require the attorneys'
f ees. He said he thinks the issue of vexatious litigation goes
beyond t he scope of HB 10.

9:42: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked the bill sponsor if he thinks HB 10
woul d "expand the potency potential of vexatious conplaint.”

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG responded that he does not think the
proposed legislation would have any effect on vexatious
[itigation.

9:43: 55 AM

CHAIR LYNN said it seens that there are two separate bills in HB
10. He reviewed that the first part of the proposed |egislation
deals with the governor or |ieutenant governor being able to do
what should be done for a disabled child of any age. He
guesti oned whether the two parts of the bill bel ong together.

9:44:29 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony.

9:44: 48 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- January 31, 2013



CHAIR LYNN stated his support for the first part of HB 10, and
said the second part raises a lot of questions that nerit nore
di scussi on.

9: 45: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS offered her understanding that testinony
has shown that frivolous ethics conplaints are exposed, which
she said addresses her concern that a person would not have to
shell out the nobney to cover attorneys' fees for a frivolous

conplaint and get reinbursed |ater. Regarding a nonfrivol ous
ethics conplaint, wherein the person has to hire his/her own
attorney, she stated, "Qur constituents have to do the sane
thing, and | think they're looking at us to have the sane
rules.”

9:46: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON said the bill sponsor has pointed out
that the intent of HB 10 is not to address the issue of

vexatious litigation; however, he estimated that the bill would
notify the plaintiff that if he/she mnmakes it through the
executive branch ethics process, he/she wll not bleed the
governor's funds, because if the governor prevails, then the
governor will be reinbursed. He suggested perhaps the situation
with fornmer Governor Palin was that people tried to "bleed her
dry." He stated, "That is not what we want our executives to
have to endure.”™ He concurred with the chair that HB 10 may be
two bills in one, but stated his support of both aspects of the
pr oposed | egi sl ation, because it woul d provi de "cl ear
instructions to all involved."

9:48:41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWKINS offered his understanding that
with vexatious conplaints; it is the conplainant that wll "pay
through the nose" when his/her conplaint is found to be
nmeritless. He added, "It's just a question of when." He opined

that the second part of HB 10 is logical and nerely aligns "when
that noney is paid out for executive branch people with nenbers
of the general public."

9:49: 40 AM

CHAIR LYNN reiterated his previous remarks about the conplexity
of the second part of the proposed |egislation.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- January 31, 2013



CHAI R LYNN announced that HB 10 [as amended] was hel d over.

9:50: 59 AM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:51
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- January 31, 2013



